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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Capri Global Housing Finance 
Limited (the "Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3Pt March 2019, and 
the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS") and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31St March 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows 
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
!CAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

• The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis and Directors Report (the "Reports"), but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditors' report thereon. The Reports are expected to be made 
available to us after the date of this auditors' report. 

• Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon . 

. .... ~ • In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

~
-:;;:.':'<.lt,·~ .. c other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

~,~nconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course 
HAPrror-·· · Qf our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
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• If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, 
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

/-'-. ;,·, '" Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to 

~~
\>-·----~:,\design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
~ HART.EF'-'· 1.A3(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
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Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matter 

The comparative financial information of the Company for transition date opening balance 
sheet as at pt April 2017 included in these financial statements, have been prepared after 
adjusting previously issued the financial statements prepared in accordance with the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS. The previously 
issued financial statements were audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the 
year ended 3Pt March 2017 dated 12th May 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion on this 
financial statements. Adjustments made to the previously issued financial statements to 
comply with Ind AS have been audited by us. 

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matter on 
the comparative financial information. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 
March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the 
Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal 
financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 

position in Note 48 to its financial statements. as at 3Pt March 2019; 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts as at year-end for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 
and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by 
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure 
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

Mumbai: April 27, 2019 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018) 
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Report on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Capri Global 
Housing Finance Limited (the "Company") as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit 
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note"). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial control 
over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 

Mumbai: April 27, 2019 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No.ll7366W/W-100018) 
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report of even date) 

(i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in 
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, 
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. 
According to the information and explanation given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records 
examined by us, there are no immovable properties, included in property, plant 
and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the requirement under paragraph 
3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(ii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 
3(ii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Act. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees 
under the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act and hence reporting under 
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(v) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year and no order 
in this respect has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law 
Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunals. 

(vi) To the best our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under 
section 148(1) of the Act, in respect of the services rendered by the Company. 

(vii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and 
Service Tax and cess to the appropriate authorities. 

,~:,,,:::,::.::.:_, :::c~ (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, 

G
l.t.J~ ~<_· .. \ Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax and cess as at 
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3Pt March 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

(c) Details of dues of Income-tax as on 3Pt March 2019 on account of disputes are 
given below:-

Name of Nature of 
Forum where Period to which 

Amount 
Statute Dues 

Dispute is the Amount 
(Rs.) 

Pending Relates 

Regular 
Income Tax Assessment Assessing 

AY 2008-09 1,95,454 
Act, 1961 u/s 143(3) officer 

of the Act 

Income Tax 
Interest u/s 

Assessing 
Act, 1961 

220(2) of 
officer 

AY 2010-11 16,875 
the Act 

There are no dues of Provident Fund, Employees' state insurance, and Goods and 
Service Tax as on 3 pt March 2019 on account of disputes. 

(viii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to 
banks. The Company has not taken any loan from government and financial 
institutions. The Company has not issued any debentures. 

(ix) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, the money raised by way of the term loans have been applied by the Company 
during the year for the purposes for which they were raised other than temporary 
deployment pending application of proceeds. The Company has not raised moneys by 
way of initial public offer/ further public offer including debt instruments. 

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given 
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers 
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Act, where 
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party 

L , 

1 
, .-, transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 

~0~~ applicable accounting standards. 
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(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting 
under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with its directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 
of the Act are not applicable. 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. 

Mumbai: April 27, 2019 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No.l17366W/W-100018) 
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(1) 
(a) 
(b) 

(c) 
(d) 
(e) 
(f) 

(2) 
(a) 
(b) 

(c) 
(d) 
(e) 
(f) 

(g) 

(1) 

(a) 

(b) 
(c) 

(2) 

(a) 
(b) 
(c) 

(3) 
(a) 
(b) 

CAPRI GLQQAL HOUSING FINANCE UMITED 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31. 2011! 

.ASSETS 
Financial assets 

Cash and cash 
Bank Balances other than (a) above 
Trade 
Loans 
nvestmems 

Other financial assets 
Total Financial Assets 

I assets 
Current Tax Assets (Net) 
Deferred tax assets (Net) 

:properties 
Property, plant and equipment 
Other intangible assets 
Intaaible Assets under 
Other 1 I assets 

.Total 

I Total Assets 

I EQUITY AND 

IUABIUTIES 

I Financial Liabilities 
Payables 

Trade Payables 
(i) total .~utstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
(ii) total UU~~· NU 'll dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 
Other finandal liabilities 

I Total Financial Liabilities 

1 Liabilities 

Current Tax uabllities (Net) 
Provisions 
Other · I liabilities 

Total. I Liabilities 

Total liabilities 

EQUITY 
Equity 
Other equitv 

I Total equity 

I Total equity and liabilities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Finandal Statements. 

In terms of our reDOrt attached 
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.117366W/W-100018) 

G. K. Subrarnaniam 
Partner 
(Membership No. 109839) 

Place: 
Date: 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

9 
10 

_11 

12 

13 

14 

15 
16 

17 
18 
19 

20 
21 

3,533,675 
77,996,078 97.004.783 
42,876,480 4,594,526 

7,764,793,851 2,379,693,094 
-

6,652,361 5,418,069 ................ " --;;, ADft 

6,665,447 1.165.687 
42.064.553 41,161,029 
10,973,681 10,973.681 
22,670,597 , .. >71 ~7Q 

1,925,013 1,675,525 
588,600 

5.533.764 11.446.547 

an 4">1 '"'" on""' ftA"> 

.................. --;;, ...... 

41,310,567 28,884,340 

6,763_.742,756 1 

286.959.771 447.151.499 
7 .no, n1 ... naA 

5.472.849 -
9.256.366 4.836.705 

39,988,043 8.41 .384 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(Rajesh Sharma) 

Managing Director 

DIN 00020037 

Place: ,'V' '-\,~~ 
oate: J..?/ o"t(..toli 

Independent Director 

DIN0010~j 

,li 
Company Secretary 

6.685.022 

11l38.587 
64.091.711 

266.875.517 .395.ii00 

6.187.346 
15.036.612 
to:973.681 

1,291,446 
429]89 

863.314 
-;;;= 

o:n-. ao:n ,,,. 

-

1,792,275 

31.997.579 

-
1.219.078 

542.308 
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE UMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LQSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements. 

In terms of our report attached 
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(Firm Registration No.117366W/W-100018) 

G. K. Subramaniam 
Partner 
(Membership No. 109839) 

Place: 
Date: 

(Rajesh Sharma) 

Managing Director 

DIN 00020037 

Independent Director 
DIN 00295213 

Place: M~..VN~..!:>~ 
Date: .21/ oft { J.. o \ c~ 

~~t 
Independent Director 

DIN 00107097 
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Company Secretary 



CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

Year ended March 31, 
Particulars 2019 

Operating activities 
Profit before tax from continuing operations 92,708,198 
Profit before tax 92,708,198 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: 
Depreciation & amortisation 17,637,511 
Impairment on financial instruments 24,588,468 
Net loss on financial asset designated at FVOCI -
Share Based Payments to employees (2,777,783 
Provision for Bonus 20,000,003 
Provision for Gratuity 681,854 
Provision for Leave Encashment 1,598,215 

Operating Loss before workina capital changes 154436.466 

Working capital changes 
Loans (5,409,689,225) 
Trade receivables (33,603,462) 
Trade payables 44,002,887 
Other financial liability (160,191,729 
Provisions (18,223,394 

Cash used in Operations before tax l5A23 268 4571 
Taxes Paid (23,713,700 
Net cash used in operating activities (5,446,982,158} 

Investing activities 
Purchase of fixed and intangible assets (17,718,622 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 844,004 
Maturity of Fixed Deposits 19,008,705 
Proceeds from sale of investment at amortised cost -
Net cash flows from investing activities 2,134,086.45 

Financing activities 
Increase in Share Capital 238,095,200 
Increase in Securities Premium 761,904,639 
Borrowings other than debt securities issued 5,677,395,502 
Net cash flows from financing activities 6,677,395,341 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,232,547,270 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,533,675 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,236,080,945 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 730,794 
Balances with banks 

In current accounts 565,350,151 
In Deposit accounts with original maturity of 3 months or less 670,000,000 

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,236,080,945 

1. Operational cash flows from Interest and dividends 
Interest paid 372,359,058 

Interest received 629,298,412 

Dividend received -
. . . . . 

2. Cash flows ansmg on account of taxes on 1ncome are not specifically b1furcated with respect to Investing & financmg activities . 
3. Previous Years figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary to confirm to current year's classification. 
4. Figures in brackets represent outflows. 

In terms of our report attached 
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No.117366W/W-100018) 

G. K. Subramaniam 

Partner 
(Membership No. 109839) 

Place: 
Date: 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(Rajesh Sharma) 
Managing Director 

DIN 00020037 

~•D) 
Independent Director 

DIN 00295213 

Place: ('1\ UNv"-':. c"' 

Date: c2 . ."7/~>Lr jGtbl1 

~\r 
(Bhagyam Ramani) 
Independent Director 

DIN 00107097 

~9 

,_~ 
Company Secretary 

(Amount in Rs.1 
Year ended March 31, 

2018 

(70,324,870) 
{70,324,870) 

5,224,828 
4,251,238 
6,297,204 
2,553,881 
9,000,000 

355,500 
2,327,209 

{40 315 010) 

(2,319,852,622 
Jl5,606,302 

(3,555,939 
450,115,062 

(7,989,421) 

(1937,204 231) 
{20,509,215 

(1,957,713,446) 

{29,451,096 
-

137,087,706 
260,578,313 

368,214,923 

119,047,600 
380,952,321 

1,086,347,254 
1,586,347,175 

(3,151,348) 
6,685,022 

3,533,674 

81,072 

3,452,603 
-

3,533,675 

16,487,808 
96,421,478 

-



CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE UMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUID 

A. EQUID SHARE CAIDAL 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting 
year 

369 047 600 

B. OTHER EQUITY 

Balance as at APril 1 2017 
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors 

Restated balance at the beginning of the 
reporting year 

Received during the year 
Utilised during the year 
Balance as at March 31, 2018 

Balance as at April 1 2018 
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors 
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting 
year 
Received during the year 
Utilised during the year 
Balance as at March 31, 2019 

In terms of our rePOrt attached 
For Deloitte Haskins ll Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.117366W/W-100018} 

~I j . c/'" 
r~7~· 

G. K. Subramaniam 
Partner 
(Membership No. 109839} 

Place: 
Date: 

Changes In equity 
share capital 
during the year 

238095 200 

Securities 
Premium 

-

-
380 952 321 

380 952,_321 

Securities 
Premium 

380 952 321 

380952 321 
761904 640 

-
1142856 961 

(Amount in Rs.\ 
Balance at the end 
of the reporting 
year 

607142 800 

Other 
Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive 

Income 

Statutory Reserve 
Employee Benefit Employee Share under Section 29C of Retained Earnings 

Option Outstanding the National Housing Expenses (Gratuity 

Bank Act, 1987 - OCI) 

315 184 972 223 902 7 000 000 -

315184972 223 902 7000 000 -
(69,710,276} 2 553 881 21100 000 54 612 
(21,100,000} 

224,374,696 2,777 783 28,100,000 54612 

Other 
Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive 

Income 

Statutory Reserve 
Employee Benefit 

Retained Earnings 
Employee Share under Section 29C of 

Expenses (Gratuity 
Option Outstanding the National Housing 

·OCI) 
Bank Act, 1987 

224 374 696 2 777 783 28 100 000 54 612 

224 374 696 2,777 783 28100000 54612 
69 823 951 14 000 000 (262 001 

(14,000,000} (2,777,783} - -
280198 647 0 42,100000 (207,389} 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(Rajesh Sharma) 
Managing Director 

DIN 0002 

~~ 
Independent Director 

Place: lit\~-' 
Date: :2.._ 71 Olf-/.t 0 { "'\ 

DIN:Y;J 

(Ka~ 
Company Secretary 

(Amount in Rs.\ 
Total 

322,408874 
-

322,408 874 

334950 538 
(21100000) 

636 259,412 

Total 

636 259,412 

636 259,412 
845A!_6 590 
(16777 783) 

1,464 948 218 



Capri Global Housing Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

1. Corporate Information 
Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (the Company) having principle place of business at Registered 

office, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013 is 

engaged in the business of providing loans primarily to customers for purchase I construction I repair 
and renovation of residential property. The Company holds registration certificate No. 07.0139.16 

with National Housing Bank under section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 dated 18th July 

2016 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 were authorised for issue in accordance 
with a resolution of the board of directors on April 27, 2019 

2. Significant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (lnd AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 

amended from time to time). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 

convention, as modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant 

Accounting Standards. Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, 

unless otherwise stated. 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or 
complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 6-
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the 

nearest Rupee, except when otherwise indicated. 

2.2. Presentation of financial statement 
The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule Ill (Division Ill) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and 

financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional 

legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event 

and the parties intend to settle on a net basis in the following circumstances: 

i. The normal course of business 

ii. The event of default 

iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties 

2.3. Statement of compliance 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd 

AS) on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values 

at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below and the relevant 

provisions of the Act. 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has adopted all the lnd AS and the adoption was carried out in 

accordance with lnd AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with Aprill, 2017 as 
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

the transition date. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally 

accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard 

is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting 

policy hitherto in use. 

2.4 Financial instruments 

(i) Classification of financial instruments 

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories: 

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost 

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account 

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets' cash flows and the 

Company's business model for managing financial assets which are explained below: 

Business model assessment 

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of 
financial assets to achieve its business objective. 

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher 

level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as: 

... How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business 

model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel 

.. The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within 
that business model) and the way those risks are managed 

... How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based 

on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected) 

... The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company's 

assessment. The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without 

taking 'worst case' or 'stress case' scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are 

realised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations, the Company does not 

change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model but 

incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets 

going forward. 

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test 

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial 

assets to identify whether they meet the SPPI test. 

'Principal' for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial 

recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments 

of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount). 

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent 

with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, 

credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending 

arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent 
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value 

through profit or loss 

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at 

fair value through the profit and loss account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss such as derivative liabilities. 

(ii) Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

Debt instruments 

These financial assets comprise bank balances, receivables, investments and other financial assets. 

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost where they have: 

a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and 

b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual 

cash flows. 

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs 

and subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

(iii) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Debt instruments 

Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

where they have: 

a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and 

b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 

cash flows and selling financial assets. 

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs 

and subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are 

included in other comprehensive income within a separate component of equity. Impairment losses 

or reversals, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Profit and Loss. 

Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is 

reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss. 

Equity instruments 

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration 

recognised by the Company in a business combination to which lnd AS 103 'Business Combination' 

applies, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, where an irrevocable 

election has been made by management and when such instruments meet the definition of definition 

of Equity under lnd AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. Such classification is determined on an 

instrument-by-instrument basis. As at reporting date, there are no equity instruments measured at 

FVTOCI. 
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. 

Dividends on such investments are recognised in Profit or Loss. 

(iv) Items at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise: 

• Investments (including equity shares) held for trading; 

• Items specifically designated as FVTPL on initial recognition; and 

• debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and 

interest. 

Financial instruments held at FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value, with transaction costs 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are measured at fair 
value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as they arise. 

Financial instruments held for trading 

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for selling 

or repurchasing in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed 

together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking, or it is a derivative not in a 

qualifying hedge relationship. 

Trading derivatives and trading securities are classified as held for trading and recognised at fair value. 

No Trading derivatives were undertaken until the year ended March 31, 2019 

Financial instruments designated as measured at FVTPL 

Upon initial recognition, financial instruments may be designated FVTPL. A financial asset may only be 

designated at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition 
inconsistencies (i.e. eliminates an accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise from measuring 

financial assets or liabilities on a different basis. 

A financial liability may be designated at FVTPL if it eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch or: 

• if a host contract contains one or more embedded derivatives; or 

• if financial assets and liabilities are both managed, and their performance evaluated on a fair value 

basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy. 

Where a financial liability is designated at FVTPL, the movement in fair value attributable to changes 

in the Company's own credit quality is calculated by determining the changes in credit spreads above 

observable market interest rates and is presented separately in other comprehensive income. As at 

the reporting date, the Company has not designated any financial instruments as measured at fair 

value through profit or loss. 

(v) Debt securities and other borrowed funds 
After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue 

funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

(vi) Reclassification 

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets 

affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new 

category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in 

business model that result in reclassifying the Company's financial assets. Changes in contractual cash 

flows are considered under the accounting policy on Modification and derecognition of financial assets 

described below. 

(vii) Recognition and Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities 

Recognition: 
a) Loans and Advances are initially recognised when the Financial Instruments are transferred to the 

customers. 

b) Investments are initially recognised on the settlement date. 

c) Debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised when funds reach the Company. 

d) Other Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that 

the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes 

regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the 
time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. 

Derecoqnition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions: 

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a Joan to a customer, when the terms and 

conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the 

difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment Joss has not 
already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement 

purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to be Purchased or Originated as Credit Impaired (POCI). 

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does 

not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the 

Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already 

been recorded. 

Derecoqnition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification 

a) Financial assets: 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 

assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. 

The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the 

transfer qualifies for derecognition. 

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, the Company has transferred its contractual rights 

to receive cash flows from the financial asset 

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either: 

i. The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

ii. The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 

of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset 
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability 

to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally 

and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer. 

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and 

has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the 

Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. 

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 

obligations that the Company has retained. 

b) Financialliabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 

expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 

exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 

new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the 

consideration paid is recognised in Profit or Loss. 

(viii) Impairment of financial assets 

Overview of the ECL principles 

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not 

held at FVTPL, together with financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as 'financial 

instruments. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under lnd AS 109. 

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life oft he asset (the lifetime 

expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in 

which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss. 

lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected 

life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECL that represent the ECls 

that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after 

the reporting date. 

Both lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECls are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis. 

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, 

of whether a financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by 

considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial 
instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level. 

If a borrower has various facilities having different past due status, then the highest days past due 

(DPD) is considered to be applicable for all the facilities of that borrower. 

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described 

below: 

Stage 1 

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or 

that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are 

classified under this stage. The Company classifies all standard advances and advances up to 0-29 days 

default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, 

and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2. 
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Stage 2 

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are 

not credit impaired are classified under this stage. Financial assets past due for 30-89 days are 

classified under this stage. Stage 2 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and 

the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3. 

Stage 3 

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact 

on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For 

exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is 

calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than 

the gross carrying amount. 90 days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a financial 

instrument as credit impaired. If an event (for eg. any natural calamity) warrants a provision higher 

than as mandated under ECL methodology, the Company may classify the financial asset in Stage 3 

accordingly. 

Credit-impaired financial assets: 

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and 

debt financial assets carried at FVTOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when 

one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 

asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data: 

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 

b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event; 

c) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would not 

consider otherwise; 

d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; 

or 

e) The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

ECL on Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI 

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these 

financial assets in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the 

allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an 

accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss 

recognised in OCI is recycled to the statement of Profit and Loss upon de recognition of the assets. 

The mechanics of ECL: 
The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash 

shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the 

cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the 

Company expects to receive. 

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows: 
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Probability of Default (PD)- The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over 
a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the 

facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. 12 Month PD is sourced from 
CRISIL Default Study Report - 2016 based on the external rating of the borrower. lifetime PD is 

computed using Basic exponentiation formula based on the average residual maturity of the loan. 

Exposure at Default (EAD)- The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure including interest 

accrued thereon at a future default date and also including the undrawn commitments. 

Loss Given Default (LGD)- The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where 

a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due 

and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It 

is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. 

Forward looking information 

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments 

occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses ifthere 

is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set 

by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company 

based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be 

always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology 

to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably. 

Collateral Valuation 

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. 

The collateral comes in various forms, such as the underlying asset financed, cash, securities, letters 

of credit/guarantees, etc. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECls. To the 

extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral. 

Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued using models. 

Collateral repossessed 

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets 

in its retail portfolio, but engages its employees to recover funds, to settle outstanding debt. Any 

surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, assets under legal 

repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet. 

(ix) Write-offs 

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no 
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is 

generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources 

of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any 

subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the Statement of Profit and loss. 
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited 
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(x) Determination of fair value 

On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent 

measurement, the Company measures certain categories of financial instruments (as explained in 

note. at fair value on each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 

based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 

either: 

i. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 

best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 

generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 

and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a 

hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below: 

Level 1 financial instruments -Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted 

prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the 

measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading 

activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there 

are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date. 

Level 2 financial instruments -Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, 

are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the 
instrument's life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, 

quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted 

prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, 

adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates 

to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on 

unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the 

instruments as level 3. 

Level 3 financial instruments -Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant 

to the measurement as whole. 
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The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 

period during which the change has occurred. 

Difference between transaction price and fair value at initial recognition 

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction 
price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument 

is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument 

(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include 

only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Company recognises the 

difference between the transaction price and the fair value in profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e. 

on day one). 

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair 

value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the 

Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair 

value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are 

not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is not recognised at 

the initial recognition stage. 
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2.5 Revenue from operations 

(i) Interest Income 
Interest income is recognised by applying {EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other 

than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL, taking into account 

the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is recognised on non­

performing assets at net of ECL. 

The EIR is computed 

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the 

expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset 

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, 

extension, call and similar options) in estimating the cash flows 

c. Including all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of 

the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. 

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income 

with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets. 

(ii) Dividend Income 

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established. 

(iii) Fees & Commission Income 

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at fair 

value of the consideration received or receivable based on a five-step model as set out below, unless 

included in the effective interest calculation: 

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or 

more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract 

that must be met. 

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a 

contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer. 

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which 

the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a 

customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract 

that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each 

performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company 

expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation. 

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation 

(iv) Net gain on Fair value changes 

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as FVTPL held by the Company on 

the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain I loss. In cases there is a net gain in the 

aggregate, the same is recognised in "Net gains on fair value changes" under Revenue from operations 
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and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed as "Net loss on fair value changes" under Expenses in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt 

instruments measured at FVOCI is recognised in net gain I loss on fair value changes. 

However, Net gain I loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is 

presented separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(V) Loan Processing Fees 

Loan processing fees on loans is collected towards processing of loan, this is amortised on EIR basis 

over the contractual life of the loan. 

2.6 Expenses 

(i) Finance costs 

Finance costs on borrowings is paid towards availing of loan, is amortised on EIR basis over the 

contractual life of loan. 

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed 

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life 

of the financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the amortised cost of a financial 

liability. 

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash 

flows 

c. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective 

interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. 

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest expense 

with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability. 

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the 

financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These 

include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs, 

Rating Fee etc, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial 

liability. 

(ii) Retirement and other employee benefits 

Short term employee benefit 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 

short-term employee benefits. These benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid 

annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in 

exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period. 

Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognised 

in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 
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Post-employment employee benefits 

a) Defined contribution schemes 

All the eligible employees of the Company who have opted to receive benefits under the Provident 

Fund and Employees State Insurance scheme, defined contribution plans in which both the employee 

and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no liability for future 

benefits other than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the 

period in which employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for 

service received before the Balance Sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit 

payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the 

contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the Balance Sheet 

date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, 

a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

b) Defined Benefit schemes 

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The 

plan provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation 

from employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under 'The Payment of Gratuity 

Act, 1972'. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based 

on actuarial valuation, carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the 

Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional 

unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final 
obligation. 

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates 

used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the 

market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date. 

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure 

the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the 

plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined 

liability or asset through other comprehensive income. An actuarial valuation involves making various 

assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination 

ofthe discount rate, attrition rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities 

involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in 

these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

The Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to The Trustees - "Money matters Financial 

Services limited Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme". Trustees administer contributions 

made to the trust and contributions are invested in a scheme of insurance with the IRDA approved 

Insurance Companies. 

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding 

amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in 

the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period 

in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods. 
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Other long-term employee benefits 

Company's liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of 

valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit 

Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes 

in actuarial assumptions and are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and loss. 

The Company presents the Provision for compensated absences under provisions in the Balance 

Sheet. 

(iii) Rent Expense: 

Identification of Lease: 

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance 

of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is 

dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use 

the asset. 

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2017, the Company has determined whether the 

arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition. 

Recognition of lease payments: 
Rent Expenses representing operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement 

of Profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the increase is in line with 

expected general inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised based on contractual terms. 

leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to 

ownership of the leased items are operating leases. 

(iv) Other income and expenses 

All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur. 
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(v) Impairment of non-financial assets 
The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of 

impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the 

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater 

of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. 

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no 

such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment, 

depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. 

(vi) Taxes 

Current Tax 
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected 

to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute 

the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in the 

countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 

loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in 

correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically 

evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 

regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax 

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred income tax is determined using tax 

rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are 

expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax 

liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax 

credits if it is probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences 

and losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that 

it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 

tax assets and liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same 

taxable entity. 
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Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) 

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current 

tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that it is probable 

that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which 

MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit 

as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of 

Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit 

to the statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement." The Company reviews the 

MAT Credit Entitlement asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the 

Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. 

Goods and services tax /service tax/value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring 

expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/service tax/value added taxes 

paid, except: 

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the 

taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of 

acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable 

ii. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 

receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 

2.7 Foreign currency translation 

(i) Functional and presentational currency 

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency 

of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 

operates. 

(ii) Transactions and balances 

Initial recognition: 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates 

prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 

Conversion: 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year­

end, are translated at the year-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange 

differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 

the spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition. 

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are 

readily convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original maturity of three 

months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. They are held for the 

purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other purposes). 
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For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short­

term deposits, as defined above. 

2.9 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment, (if any). The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties, 

taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. 

Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or 

methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it 

increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of 

performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed 

off as and when incurred. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method to write down the cost of property 

and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which is in line with the 

estimated useful life as specified in Schedule II of the Act. The estimated useful lives are as prescribed 

by Schedule II of the Act. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, 

plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 

appropriate. 

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in 

other income I expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The 

date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control 

of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is 

satisfied in lnd AS 115. 

2.10 Intangible assets 

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that 

the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company. 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an 

intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on making the 

asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial 

recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 

accumulated impairment losses. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with 

finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation 

method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. 

Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic 

benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or 

methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates. The 
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amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the 

statement of profit and loss. Amortisation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a 

pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss from I upto the date of acquisition/sale. 

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets 

to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets comprising of software are 

amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 years, unless it has a shorter useful life. 

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

2.111nvestment Property 

Properties, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment property and 

measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs. For transition to lnd AS, the company has 

elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of investment property as per Indian GAAP less 

accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment (if any) as on the transition date of April 1, 

2017. 

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the investment 

property less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Act, or in case 

of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so 
determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected 
pattern of consumption of the future benefits embodied in the investment property. The estimated 
useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change 
in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis. 

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is 

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. 

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

in the same period. 

2.12 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 

will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. 

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of 

provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific 

to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

net of any reimbursement. 

2.13 Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 

control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that 
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an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in 

extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be 

measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence 

in the financial statements. 

2.14 Earning Per Share 

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with lnd AS 33 on Earnings 

per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average 

number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable 

to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are 

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are 

deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In 

computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either 

reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included. 

2.15. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the lnd AS requires the management to 

make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, 

assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at 

the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 

basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are 

revised, and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management's 

best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates 

could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or 

liabilities in future periods. 

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in 

applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 

financial statements is included in the following notes: 

2.16 Impairment of loans portfolio 

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, 

in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when 

determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These 

estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of 

allowances. 

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience 

and adjust when necessary. 

2.17 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method 

The Company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income I expense using a rate of return that 

represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans 

given I taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and 
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other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and 

charges). 

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and 

life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee 

income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument 

2.18 First time adoption 

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2019, are the first financial statements the 

Company has prepared in accordance with lnd AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 

March 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards 

notified under section 133 of the Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP). 

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with lnd AS applicable for 

periods ending on 31 March 2019, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year 

ended 31 March 2018, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing 

these financial statements, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April2017, the 

Company's date of transition to lnd AS. Since the Company did not have significant transaction as at 

the transition date, the Company has not availed Exemptions under INDAS 101. 

20 



The Fixed deposits have been kept as lien with banks against term loan fadlity availed by company. 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. The Company has assessed that, the impact of 
impairment of trade receivables is immaterial and hence no impairment loss has been provided. 

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any 
trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. 



Note-6 LOANS 

Note 1 - The Company's business model is hold contractual cash flows. beinQ the oavment of Principal and Interest, till maturity and accordinolv the loans are measured at amortised cost. 
Note 2 - Term loans are secured against tangible assets kept as collateral of immovable property. 



Note-7 INVESTMENTS 

Note- 8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 



Note 11· INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

109 73 681 109 73 681 
109 73 681 109 73 681 10973 681 

(Amount in Rs.) 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,09, 73,681.00 1,09, 73,681.00 
Additions during the year 
Disposals 
Balance at the end of the year 1,09, 73,681.00 1,09, 73,681.00 

*Investment properties are in the nature of freehold land and the fair value of properties is Rs. 1, 72,38,587/-



NotJ-12 pROpERTY plANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment (Arnountln Rs.l 

other Intangible assets : 

Property, plant and equipment 

other Intangible assets : 



Note-13 OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Note-14 TRADE PAY ABLES 
TRADE PAYABLES 

extent such parties have been identified on the basis of Information available with the Company. The amount of principal and interest outstanding 
during the year is given below:-



*First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of the company's loan receivables I book debts with asset cover of 1.10 times. 

Terms of repayment, nature of security & rate of interest in case of Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 

Name of security Maturity date Terms of repayment As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 1, 
2017 

Repayable in 28 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 50,00,00,000 20,00,00,000 -

Union Bank of India - Term Loan November 30 2025 from 28 Feb 2019 
Repayable In 26 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 50,00,00,000 50,00,00,000 -

State Bank Of India -Term Loan December 31 2025 from 31 March 2019 
Repayable in 20 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 40,00,00,000 5,00,00,000 -

YES Bank - Term Loan April25 2023 from 31 March 2018 
Repayable in 24 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 75,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 -

Bank of Maharashtra - Term Loan December 31 2024 from 15 May 2019 
Repayable in 28 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 25,00,00,000 5,00,00,000 -

Andhra Bank - Term Loan Februarv 27 2026 from 28 Mav 2019 
Repayable In 26 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 30,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 -

Vljaya Bank -Term Loan February 26 2026 from 31 May 2019 
Repayable in 28 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 25,00,00,000 10,00,000 -

United Bank- Term Loan February 28 2026 from 31 Mav 2019 
Repayable In 28 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 50,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 -

UCO Bank - Term Loan Februarv 28 2026 from 31 May 2019 
Repayable in 28 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 25,00,00,000 - -

PunJab Sindh Bank - Term Loan June 14 2026 from sept 2019 
Repayable in 20 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 25,00,00,000 - -

YES Bank - Term Loan 2 December 31 2023 from Nov 2018 
Repayable in 20 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 25,00,00,000 - -

YES Bank - Term Loan 3 December 31 2023 from April 2019 
Repayable In 20 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 25,00,00,000 - -

YES Bank - Term Loan 4 October 19 2023 from Feb 2019 
Repayable In 20 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 25,00,00,000 - -

YES Bank - Term Loan 5 October 19 2023 from Feb 2019 
Repayable in 28 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 75,00,00,000 - -

Indian Bank - Term Loan Auaust 15 2026 from Nov 2019 
Repayable In 24 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 20,00,00,000 - -

Union Bank of India - Term Loan 2 AUC!Ust 30 2025 from Nov 2019 
Repayable in 24 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 50,00,00,000 - -

Union Bank of India -Term Loan 2 september 30 2025 from Dec 2019 
Repayable in 24 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 40,00,00,000 - -

Union Bank of India - Term Loan 2 November 30 2025 from Feb 2020 
Repayable In 24 Equal 
Quarterly Installment starting 40,00,00,000 - -

Union Bank of India - Term Loan 2 December 31 2025 from Mar 2020 

The rate of interest on above Term Loan is in the range of 8.80% p.a to 10.55% p.a 



Note-16 OTHER FINANCIAL UABILITIES 

Note-17 CURRENT TAX UABILITIES 

Note-18 PROVISIONS 

Note-19 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL UABILmES 



SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP 
Equity Shares of ~ 10 each 

,o,,ouinuo Year 3,69,04,760 Equity Shares of ~ 10 each) 

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period: 

25,00,00,000 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company are given below: 

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares: 
1. The Company has only one class of equity share having a face value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares Is entitled to one vote per share. 

2. During the year the Company has issued 23,809,520 equity shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each at Rs. 42/- per share to its Holding Company. 

3. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the amount of dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders was Rs.NIL (31 March 2018 Rs.NIL) (31 March 2017 
Rs.NIL). 

4. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts. The distribution will be proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 



Balance as per the last Financial Statements 
Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Closing balance 

Balance as per the last financial statements 

Adl:liti<ons;j([>eiE!tions) during the year 

Securities Premium 

2,81,00,000 

1,40,00,000 

4,21,00,000 

38,09,S2,321 

76,19,04,640 

1,14,28,56,961 

70,00,000 

2,11,00,000 

2,81,00,000 

38,09,S2,321 

38,09,52,321 

27,77,783 2,23,902 

16,88,11,092 

(20,00,000) 

14,83,73,880 

31,51,84,972 

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 
Every housing finance institution which is a company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its profit every year as 

disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. Explanation.-A housing finance institution creating and maintaining any special reserve in 
terms of clause (viii) of sub-section (1) of section 36 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) may take into account any sum transferred by it for the year to such special 
reserve for the purposes of this sub-section. For the previous comparative periods, company has maintained transfer to statutory reserve on profit calculated under 
erstwhile GAAP. 

Employee stock option outstanding reserves 
This reserve is used to record the employee stock options which are outstanding. The said reserve will be utilised for issuance of share to the eligible employees. 



Note-23 FEE INCOME 

Note -24 NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES 

Note 25 OTHER OPERATING INCOME 



Note-27 FINANCE COSTS 

Note-28 IMPAIRMENT ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The table below shows the ECL charoes in terms of IND AS ouidelines on financial instruments for the vear recorded in the orofit and loss based on evaluation staoe: 



During the year ended March 31, 2019 the company has cancelled the ESOPs on account of resignation 
accordinalv the provision for ESOP expense has been reversed. 

Disclosures 

1. Payments to auditors (Net of tax) 
(Amount in Rs.) 

For the year ended March For the year ended March 
Particulars 31 2019 31 2018 

a) For audit 3 00 000 218 000 
b) For taxation matters 100 000 1 09 000 
c) For other services - -
Total 400000 3 27000 

2. Expenditure incurred for CSR 
(Amount in Rs. 

For the year ended March For the year ended March 
Particulars 31 2019 31 2018 
Gross Amount Reauired to be spent during the vear 10 71672 -
Amount spent during the year on CSR 10 72 000 -



Note 32 -OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 



Note 33- lndMdual Loans 

1.1 Credit quality of assets 

Particulars As at March 31 2019 As at March 31 2018 
Stage 1 Stage 2 5tage3 Total Stage 1 5tage2 Stille 3 

Internal rating grade* 

Perfonning 

High grade 7 60 10 51656 - 7 60 10 51656 2 3615 76 769 -
Standard grade 1196 39068 1196 39 068 5 13 85 725 -
SUb-standard grade - 6 33 80 221 6 33 80 221 2 22 89 666 

Past due but not lmoaired 4 22 99408 4 22 99 408 95 68 559 

Jndividuallv imoalred 3 78 81 257 3 78 81257 55 95 925 
Total 7 72.06 90 724 10 56 79 629 3 78 81257 7 86 4 51610 4129 62.494 318 58 225 55 95 925 

1.2 An analysis of changes In the gross c,aming amount and the corresoondjng ECL allowances In relation to Jendjng is· as follows; 

Particulars As at March 31 2019 
5tage1 5taoe 2 Stage3 

Gross carrying amount opening balance 2 41 29 62.494 318 58 225 55 95 925 

New assets originated or purchased 5 60 42 99 937 3 85 07 942 22 87 548 

Assets derecognised or reoaid (exdudillQ write offsl -22 71 81109 ·34 03 316 -6 66 102 

Transfers to Stage 1 2 2741922 -2 27 41922 

Transfers to Staae 2 -6 13 88 433 613 88 433 

Transfers to Staae 3 -3 09 33 341 ·57 31866 3 66 65 207 

Amounts written off -9934 

Gross carrvlng amount dosing balance 7,72,05,01,470 9,98,77,496 4,38,72,644 

&econcmatlon of ECL balance Is given below; 

Particulars As at March 31 2019 
Stage 1 5taae 2 Staue3 

ECL allowance -opening balance 21,66 322 5 25 212 5 94 291 

New assets originated or ourchased 93 74 306 29 04 855 106 70 983 

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) -5 01350 

Transfers to Stage 1 3 50 282 -3 so 282 

Transfers to Stage 2 -57 337 57 337 

Transfers to Stage 3 -27 697 -88 992 116 689 

ECL allowance - dosing balance 113 04 526 30,48,130 1,13,81963 

• Internal Rating Grades are classified on below baSis 

Grade 
Classification Stage 
Basis 

High grade ODPD Staae 1 
Standard_Qrade 1-30 DPD Stam! 1 
Sub-standard grade 31-60 DPD Staae 2 
Past due but not lmoalred 61-89 DPD <aaae 2 
Individually imoaired >~90 DPD Staae 3 

As at March 31 2018 
Total Stage 1 5ta e2 Stage3 

2 45 0416 644 6 5012.251 - -
5 64 so 95 427 2 35 60 76 667 34214 220 32,39,930 

-23 12 50 527 -8126 424 

-
-
-

-9 934 -
7 ,86,42,51,610 2,41,29,62,494 3,42,14,220 32,39,930 

As at March 31, 2018 
Total Stage 1 5taae 2 

32,85825 61351 

2 29 so 144 2112 676 

-5 01350 -7 705 

-
-

2.57 34 619 2166 322 

~ ..... , c/.\\ 
' . '\<.0\ ~I .,_., "" \ (1\ \ 
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~~~ 

-
5 25 212 

-
-
-
-

5 25 212 

5taae3 

-
5 94 291 

-
-
-
-

5 94 291 

(Amount In Rs.) 
AJ>ril1 2017 

Total Stage 1 Stille 2 Stage3 Total 

2 36 15 76 769 6 so 12 251 - - 6 50 12 251 

5 13 85 725 -
2 22 89 666 - - -

95 68 559 -
55 95 925 

2 45 0416 644 6 5012 251 - - 6 5012,251 

(Amount In Rs.) 

Total 

6 5012,251 

2 39 35 30 817 

·8126 424 

2,45,04,16,644 

(Amount In Rs.l 

Total 

61351 

32 32179 

-7705 

32.85.82S 



Note 34-Income Taxes relating to continuing operations 

1. Income Tax recognised in profit or loss 

Particulars 
Current Tax 

In respect of the current~ 

In respect of prior years 

Others (MAT Credit Entitlement) 

Deferred Tax 

In resoect of the current vear 

On other corTlj)_rehensive income 

Total Income tax expense recognised in the currenty_ear relating to continuing_()J)eratlons 

2. Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense for the year : 

Particulars 

Standalone Profit before tax 

Adjustments of allowable and non-allowable Income and expenses: 

Tax Effect of non-deductible exoenses 

Tax Effect of income exempt from tax 

Tax Effect of Income considered separatev 

Tax Effect of capital Gain on sale of shares mutual funds interest etc 

Tax Effect of Deduction under Chapter VI A 

Earlier loss set off 

Taxable Profits I (loss) 
Income Tax Expenses 

'of MAT oavable on the book orofits as oer sedlon 11518 

Less : IND AS AdJustments 

Add : Items not deductible 

Total Taxable Book Profits 

MAT Tax Exoesnes 

Less : Mat Credit Entitlement credited in Profit and Loss Account 

I_n_come tal( expense_rt!COgnised in statement of profit and loss 

Note: Income Tax Expenses is NIL for the year ended March 31, 2018 as there is no taxable income. 

3. Recondliation of Income tax rate is as follows: 

Particulars 

Normal Tax Rate 

Surcharqe (@ 12% of Normal Tax Rate) 

Education cess Oncludino secondary and hiQher education cess) Applicable forAY 2018-19 
Health and Education Cess ADolicable forAY 2019-20 
Total Tax Rate 

Tax Rate payable u/s USJB of the Income Tax Act. 1961 

Surcharqe (@ 12% of Normal Tax Rate) 

Education cess Oncludino secondary and hiQher education cess) Applicable forAY 2018-19 
Health and Education Cess ADolicable forAY 2019-20 
Total Tax Rate payable under sedlon USJB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

(Amount in Rs. l 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31 2019 March 31 2018 

4 58 93 217 2 58 52 627 
- 162 06 912 
- -2 58 52 627 

45893 217 162.06 912 

-2 30 08 969 -168 21 504 
100 982 -21049 

-2,29 07 987 -1 68 42.553 

2 29 85 230 -6 35 641 

(Amount in Rs. l 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31 2019 March 31 2018 

9 27 08196 -7 03 24 870 
-

12 20 09 323 19 54 55 387 
- -13 46 77 772 

-5 96 98 066 -4 42 568 
2 16 67 424 -250 

-5 36 000 -
-1 85 50 543 -

15 76 00 335 -99 90 072 
4 58 93 217 -
9 27 08 196 -7 03 24 870 

-3 62 983 18 49 27 804 
24718402 65 34 309 

1170 63 615 12 1137 243 
2 52 27 209 2 58 52 626 

- -2 58 52 626 
4 58 93 217 -

(In%) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31 2019 March 31 2018 

25.00 25.00 
3.00 1.75 

- 0.80 
1.12 -

29.12 27.55 

18.50 18.50 

2.22 2.22 
- 0.62 

0.83 -
21.55 21.34 

Note: For the year ended March 31, 2018 the Company had no taliable income. However the Company paid MAT@ 21.34% on book profit. 
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Note 35- Deferred Tax 

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense: 
(Amount in Rs.) 

DeferrecrTax 
Particulars Deferred Tax Assets Liabilities Income Statement OCI 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 2018-19 2018-19 
Provisions 12,07,260 - 7,81,640 -

Depreciation 27,07,099 - 27,20,871 -
Financial Instruments at FVTPL - - -14,736 -
Impairment allowance for financial assets 38,48,541 - 26,05,741 -
Unamortised Borrowing Cost - 1,04,91,644 -69,62,240 -

Unamortised Fees and Commission 4,10,35,617 - 2,67,55,256 -
Other Temporary Differences 31,546 - 31,546 -

Other Comprehensive Income 1,00,982 - - 1,00,982 

carry Forward Losses - - -29,09,109 -
MAT Credit Entitlement 36,25,150 - - -
Total 5,25,56,196 1,04,91,644 2,30,08,970 1,00,982 

(Amount in Rs.) 
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax 

Particulars Assets Liabilities Income Statement OCI 
March 31, 2018 March 31,2018 2017-18 2017-18 

Provisions 4,25,620 - 3,48,325 -
Depreciation - 13,772 -54,542 -
Impairment allowance for financial assets 12,42,800 - 13,00,060 -
carry Forward Losses 29,09,109 - -1,17,50,291 -
Financial Instruments at FVTPL 14,736 21,049 37,443 21,049 

Unamortised borrowing Cost - 35,29,404 -35,29,404 -
Unamortised Fees and Commission 1,42,80,361 - 1,39,62,296 -
MAT Credit Entitlement 2,58,52,627 - - -
Prior Period Adjustments - - 1,65,07,616 -

Total 4,47,25,253 35,64,225 1,68,21,504 21,049 

(Amount in Rs.' 
Deferred Tax Deferred! ax 

Particulars Assets Liabilities 
April1, 2017 April 1, 2017 

Provisions 77,295 -
Depreciation 40,770 -
Impairment allowance for financial assets - 57,260 

carry Forward Losses 1,46,59,400 -
Financial Instruments at FVTPL - 1,657 

Unamortised Fees and Commission 3,18,065 -
Total 1 50 95 529 58 917 

Deffered Tax Assets 1 Liabilities are calculated by applying applicable effective tax rate of 29.12% 



Note 36· Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities 

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. They have been classified to mature and/or be repaid within 12 roonths or after 12 roonths. With regard to loans and advances to 

customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment as used for estimating the EIR. 
(Amount in R<.l 

PARTICULARS As at March 31 2019 As at March 31 2018 ADril1 2017 

ASSETS Within 12 months After 12 months Total Within 12 months Alter 12 months Total 
Within 12 After 12 months Total months 

cash and cash equivalents 
123 60 80 945 1 23 60 80 945 35,33,675 - 35 33 675 66 85 022 66 85 022 

Bank Balance other than (a) above 7 79 96 078 7 7996 078 9 70 04 783 - 9 70 04 783 23 40 92 489 23 40 92 489 
Trade Receivables 

4 28 76 480 4 28 76480 45 94 526 45 94 526 10 38 587 - 10 38 587 
Loans 

2007 50 983 7 56 40 42 868 7 7647 93 851 6 35 36 609 2 316156485 2 37 96 93 094 17 23 446 6 23 68 265 6 40 91 711 
investments - - 26 68 75 517 26 68 75 517 

Other financial asset 2 11 090 64 41271 66 52 361 5OS 657 49 12 412 54 18 069 - 3 95 000 3 95 000 

Total Assets 1,55 79,15,576 7,57,04,84,139 9,12,83,99,715 16,91,75,250 2,32,10 68,897 2,49,02,44,147 51,04,15,061 6,27,63,265 57,31,78,326 

LIABIUTIES 

Financial Liabilities 12517 28433 5 84 02.84 661 709 2013094 62.0142.982 94 22.40111 156 23 83 093 3 37.89 854 - 3 37.89 854 
Trade Payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other 
lth..n mlcm pnlf'rrlrl..,. >n~ •-" antonvi- 413 10 567 4 13 10 567 2 88 84 340 - 2 88 84 340 17 92 275 17 92 275 

Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 92 34 58 095 5 8402 84661 6 76 37 42 756 14 41 07 143 94 22 40 111 108 6347 254 -
Other financial liabilities 2869 59 771 28 69 59 771 44 71 51499 44 7151499 3 19 97 579 3 19 97 579 
Total liabilities 

12517 28.433 5,84 02.84 661 709 2013094 62,01,42,982 94 22.40,111 1,56 23,83 093 3 37,89,854 - 3 3789 854 
Net 

30,61,87 144 1 73,01,99,478 2,03 63 86 621 -45 09 67 733 1 37.88.28,786 92,78 61054 4766 25 207 6 27 63 265 53 93.88,472 

Capital MIDIMDJCDt 

The primary objectlves of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally Imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratiOs In order to support its business and to 

maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to It according to changes In economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. capital Management Policy, objectives and processes are under constant 
review by the Board. For details of capital to Risk Assets RatiO (CRAR) refer Note no. 52.1 



Note 37- Change in liabilities arising from financing activities 
(Amount in Rs.) 

Particulars As at April 1, 2018 Cash Flow As at March 31, 2019 

Borrowings other than debt securities 1,08,63,47,254 5,67,73,95,502 6,76,37,42,756 

Total liabilities from financing activities 1,08,63,47,254 5,67,73,95,502 6,76,37,42,756 



_!_Amount in Rs.' 
Note 38 -Reconciliation of Equity as previously reported under IGAAP to lnd AS 

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at April1, 2017 

Total Equity as reported under the previous GAAP (A) 1,02,95, 78,456 42,38,11,092 

(B) lnd AS Adjustments on account of: 

a. Fair Valuation of Investments through Profit and Loss - 14,92,50,243 

b. Reversal of IGAAP loan provision 67,80,532 2,60,049 

c. Amortisation of processing fees received/paid as per 
-3,67,67,516 -10,92,256 

effective interest rate 
• d. Amortisation of deferred lease rentals till transition -50,605 -

e. ECL on Loans -42,67,857 -63,416 
f. Deferred tax asset( net) 1,00,34,003 2,43,161 

Total adjustment to Equity (B) -2,42,71,444 14,85,97,782 

Total Equity under lnd AS (A+B) 1,00,53,07,012 57,24,08,874 



1. Under previous GAAP, loans were carried at cost whereas under IND AS loans are measured based on entity's business model for 
managing the financial assets and contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The loans that meet the business 
model and contractual cash flow tests are measured at amortised cost and interest income is recognised as per effective interest 

rate method. 

2. Under Previous GAAP, borrowings were recorded at cost and transaction costs were charged to Statement of Profit and loss on a 

systematic basis over the tenure of the borrowing. Under lnd AS, transaction cost incurred towards origination of borrowings is 

required to be deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These cost are recognised in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of interest expense by applying effective interest rate method. 

3. Under the previous GAAP, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts 
included in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. Under 
lnd AS, these remeasurements are recognized in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. 

4. Under previous GAAP, provision for loans was calculated using incurred loss model. Under lnd AS, the provision on financial 
assets and commitments, needs to be calculated using the expected credit loss model. 

5. Indian GAAP (NHB Guidelines) required creation of deferred tax using the income statement approach, which focuses on 

differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period specially in case of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C 

of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987. lnd-AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, 

which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. 

It also includes impact of deferred tax arising on account of transition to IND AS. 



Note 40 - Fair value measurements 

40.1 Financial instruments by category (Amount in Rs. 

ParilrAdars ~;wt:Man:UJ0.28$ AsatMardlll, lOll Aprl.l, 2017 

I Clllllt .. I'V'm.. I cost 
Financial assets 
Investments -

- Equity instruments 26,23,68,500 

- Mutual funds 45,07,017 

Trade receivables 4,28, 76,480 45,94,526 10,38,587 

Loans 7,76,47,93,851 2,37,96,93,095 6,40,91,712 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,23,60,80,945 35,33,675 66,85,022 

Bank Balances other than above 7,79,96,078 9,70,04,783 - 23,40,92,489 

Security deposits 66,52,361 54,18,069 3,95,000 

Total financial assets 9,12,83,99,714 2,49,02,44,147 26,68,75,517 30,63,02,809 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 6,76,37,42,756 1,08,63,47,254 -
Trade payables 4,13,10,567 2,88,84,340 17,92,275 

Other financial liability 28,69,59, 771 44,71,51,499 3,19,97,579 
Total financial liabilities 7,09,20,13,093 1,56,23,83,093 - 3,37,89,854 

40.2 Fair value hierarchy 
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) 
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, 
the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table. 

~}lllf!-~_.,.,. ... ,.~- .· fairY.._ ... diJlf~-..~---- . ..... ~Nnoilnt ...... 1 a.eVtit 3 Total ' -~ . -; ' <- ,- < - • - • -- \ • • '. ' ' ' • ' - - " • ' ~2 .,"-

Financial assets 
Cash and cash eouivalents 3 1 23 60 80 945 1 23 60 80 945 12360809<1 
Bank Balances other than above 4 7 79 96 078 7 79 96 078 7 79 96 01 
Receivables 5 
Trade Receivables 4 28 76 480 4 28 76 480 4 28 76 ~ 
Loans 6 7.76.47,93,851 - 7 76 47 93 851 7 76 47 93 85 
Loans to emplo'l.ees 13 93 457 13 93 457 13 93 45 
Security deposits 8 66 52 361 66 52 361 66 52 3E 
Total financial assets 9129793172 13140 77 023 - 7 815716149 912 97 9317l 
Financial Liabilities 
Trade Pavable 14 413 10 567 413 10 567 413105E 
Borrowinas 15 6 76 37 42 756 6 76 37 42 756 6 76 37 42 75 
Other financial liabilitv 16 28 69 59 771 28 69 59 771 28 69 59 71 
Total financial liabilities 7 09 2013094 - - 7 09 2013 094 709201309 

~--lllllillltllliiJ/IIIIkb .. IJIIIMIIedll.t fair Value .. .,,.fllflli:li_.~ .. ~ Cariylao.Aftl!IUnt te¥el1 Level2 .._.3 total 

......... .• . 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash eouivalents 3 35 33 675 35 33 675 - 35 33 6/ 
Bank Balances other than above 4 9 70 04 783 9 70 04 783 - 970047E 
Receivables 5 -
Trade Receivables 45 94 526 - 45 94 526 45 94 52 
Loans 6 2,37.96,93,094 2 37 96 93 094 2 37 96 93 OS 
Loans to emolovees 3 02 083 3 02 083 3 02 OE 
Securitv deposits 8 5418 069 5418 069 54 18 OE 
Total financial assets 249 0546 230 10 OS 38 458 - 2 39 00 07 772 249054623 
Financial Liabilities 
Trade_Oilyable 14 2 88 84 340 2 88 84 340 288843~ 

Borrowinas 15 1 08 63 47 254 - 1 08 63 47 254 108 63 47 25 
Other financial liabilities 16 44 71 51499 44,71,51,499 44,71,51,4S 
Total financial liabilities 156 23 83 093 - - 156 23 83 093 156238309 

~a 
·.• 

Financial assets 
Financial Investments at FVTPL 

Mutual funds 45 07 017 
26 23 68 500 

45 07 017 
26 23 68 50 

45 07 01 
7 26 23 68 500 Listed eouitv investments 

Total financial assets 26 68 75 517 26 68 75 517 26 68 75 51 
Financial liabilities 
Total financial liabilities 



,._,.lllftlllilll/lllltl$ whldll!llfl-.edllt Fair Value 

----Cfllltforwltldt tillr ,.,_ .. Notes ~A.-nt Levell Levell Levell 
Total 

·~ 

.,. aLbdl :L 2017 
Financial assets 
Cash and cash eauivalents 3 66 85 022 66 85 022 66 85 02 
Bank Balances other than above 4 23 40 92 489 23 40 92 489 23 40 92 4~ 
Receivables 5 
Trade Receivables 10 38 587 10 38 587 10 38 SE 
Loans 6 

6,40,91,711 6 40 91 711 6 40 91 71 
Loans to emolovees -
Security depasits 8 3 95 000 3 95 000 3 95 oc 
Total financial assets 306302809 24 07 77 511 6 55 25 298 30 630280 
Financial Liabilities 
Trade oavable 14 17 92 275 17 92 275 17 92 21 
Borrowinas 15 -

Other financial liability 16 31997579 3 19 97 579 3 19 97 51 
Total financial liabilities 3 3789 854 - - 3 37 89 854 3 37 89 85 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fa 
value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using tt 
closing NAV. 

Level 2: The fair value af financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, aver-the- counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques whic 
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument 
included in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, continger 

consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3. 

The carrying amounts af trade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. 

The company gives loan at floating rate with terms inclusing the fixed interest rate for initial period. The fair value of these loans approximates the Carrying amount. 

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values. 



40.3.1. Risk Disclosures 

Company's risk is managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk 

management is critical to the Company's continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Company is exposed to 

credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. 

It is the Company's policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. 

40.3.2. Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on 

the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties. 

40.3.2.11mpairement assessment 

40.3.2.1.1 Exposure at Default 

EAO is taken as the gross exposure under a facility upon default of an obligor. The amortized principal and the interest accrued is considered as EAO for the purpose of ECL computation 
The advances have been bifurcated into following three stages: 

Stage !-Advances with low credit risk and where there is no significant increase in credit risk. Hence, the advances up to 0-29 days are classified as Stage! 

Stage 2- Advances with significant increase in credit risk. Hence the advances up to 30 to 89 days are classified as Stage 2 

Stage 3- Advances that have defaulted I Credit "impaired advances. Hence the advances with 90 days past due or Restructured Advances are classified as Stage 3 

40.3.2.1.2 Significant increase in credit risk 
The Company continuously monitors all assets subject to ECls. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of instruments is subject to 12 months ECL or lifetime ECl, the Com-pany assesses 

whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company considers an exposure to have significantly increased in credit risk if contractual payments are more than 30 

days past due. 

40.3.2.1.3 Definition of default and cure 
The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECl calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. 

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeness to pay. When such events occur, the Company carefully 
considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECl calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. Such events include: 

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event; 
c) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would not consider otherwise; or 
d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation 

It is the Company's policy to consider a financial instrument as 'cured' and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when the borrower makes necessary payments & the borrower is not 90 days past due over such 
payments. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk compared to initial recognition. 

40.3.2.1.4 PO estimation process 
The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously 
de recognised and is still in the portfolio. Probability of Default computation> 
a)The 12 month PO has been sourced from CRISIL Default Study Report based on mapping of the risk weights of the respective borrower with the rating grades. 
b)The lifetime PO is computed using basic exponentiation technique after considering the residual maturity oft he respective loan. 

c) PO of 100% is considered for Stage 3 assets. 

40.3.2.1.5 Loss given default 
The loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that would be expected 

to receive, including from realisation of any prime/collateral security. LGO is computed based discounted expected recoveries at an account level based on collateral valuation after applying appropriate hair cut 

and appropriate recovery time. Accordingly, an average LGO is derived at the portfolio level. 

40.3.2.2 Analysis of risk concentration- Refer Note 52.12.3 

40.3.2.3 Collateral and other credit enhancements 

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Company has Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of 

collateral. The Company also ad hers to the NHB guidelines in respect of maintainence of adequate loan to Value Ratios. 

The main types of collateral for home loans are mortgages over residential properties. 

Management monitors the market value of collateral and requests additional collateral m accordance with the underlying agreement. 

In case of defaults by customers, where the Company is unable to recover the dues, the Company through a legal process enforces the security and recover the dues. 

/\.,"'? ) 
/ 



40.3.3. Uquldlty risk and funding management 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. liquidity risk arises 

because of the possibility that the Company might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances. Such 

scenarios could occur when funding needed for illiquid asset positions is not available to the Company on acceptable terms. To limit this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding sources and adopted a policy 

of managing assets with liquidity in mind and monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. 

Uquidity risk is managed in accordance with our Asset Uability Management Policy. This policy is framed as per the current regulatory guidelines and is approved by the Board of Directors. The Asset Uability Management 

Policy is reviewed periodically to incorporate changes as required by regulatory stipulation or to realign the policy with changes in the economic landscape. The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Company formulates 

and reviews strategies and provides guidance for management of liquidity risk within the framework laid out in the Asset Liability Management Policy. 

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities is provided in Note no. 52.6 

40.3.4 Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments. 
The core business of the company is providing housing loans. The company borrows through various financial instruments to finance its core lending activity. These activities expose the company to interest rate risk. 
Interest rate risk is measured through earnings at risk from an earnings perspective and through duration of equity from an economic value perspective. Further, exposure to fluctuations in interest rates is also measured by 

way of gap analysis, providing a static view of the maturity and re~pricing characteristic of Balance sheet positions. An interest rate sensitivity gap report is prepared by classifying all rate sensitive assets and rate sensitive 
liabilities into various time period categories according to contracted/behavioural maturities or anticipated re~pricing date. The difference in the amount of rate sensitive assets and rate sensitive liabilities maturing or being 

re-priced in any time period category, gives an indication of the extent of exposure to the risk of potential changes in the margins on new or re-priced assets and liabilities. The interest rate risk is monitored through above 

measures on a quarterly basis. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being considered as constant) of the Company's statement of profit and loss and equity. 

Currency of borrowing 

Borrowings (INR) 

-----·-

Loans (INR) 

Borrowings (INR) 

Loans (INR) 

2S Basis point Up 

SO Basis ooint Uo 

2S Basis point Down 

SO Basis point Down 

2S Basis point Up 

SO Basis point Up 

2S Basis point Down 

SO Bas~int Down __ L 

Sensitivity of profit 

or loss 
2018-19 

(27,46,169) 

Impact on Profit (S4,92,337 

before Tax 27,46,169 

S4,92,337 

61,2S,286 

Impact on Profit 1,22,SO,S73 

before Tax (61,2S,286) 

--- (1,22,SO~ 

Sensitivity of equity 

2018-19 

Impact on equity 

Impact on equity 

--- ---·· ---

~ 2o11-18 I 2o11-18 I 2o11-18 

2S Basis point Uo 

SO Basis point Up Impact on Profit 

2S Basis point Down before Tax 
Impact on equity 

SO Basis point Down -- L_ -- - ___:__ - -- . 

2S Basis point Up 1,62,S31 

SO Basis point Up Impact on Profit 3,2S,061 
Impact on equity 

2S Basis point Down before Tax (1,62,S31) 

SO Basis point Down (3,2S,061) 

(17,9S,720) 

(3S,91,439) 

17,9S,719 

3S,91,439 

40,0S,32S 

80,10,6SO 

(40,0S,32S) 

(80, 10,6SO) 

1,06,279 

2,12,SS8 

(1,06,279) 

(2,12,SS8) 

;-~-
41./-~C-
h/ <~~~D \ 
':::\ :"COUNTANTS:, 
0), Jr-. ... 
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Nobl41- Defined Benefit Ph!n 

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan In lnd~ (funded). The Company's defined benefit gratuity plan Is a final salary plan for It's employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. 

The gratuity plan ts governed by the Payment of Gratuity~ 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of seMce is entitled to specifiC benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the mernbe('s length of service and salary at separat:Jontretlrement. The fund has the form of a trust and It Is governed by the 
Board of Trustees, whk:h consistS of an equal number of employer and empioyee representatives. The Board of Trustees Is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definltk>n of the lnvestment strategy. 

~ In the defined benefit obligation and flllr vatue of plan auets • at M..-dl 31, 2019: 

Portlwl .... As at April 1, 2018 ServiC8aoot Net Interest expense 

Oerlned benefit oblloatlon -23 78 454 -1716919 -1.85 519 

Fair value or Dian assets 10 71378 83567 

Benefit ll~bUity ___ - L___ ___ ·13 07 07& ·1711919 -1.01952 

Changes in the defined benefit oblloiltion and fair value of plan assets a at March 31, 2018: 

Particulars 

Oeftnedbenefitobi""tlon 

Fair value c1 Dian assets 

Benefit llabUi!Y: 

~­Particulan 

'"""""'Fund 
Totol 

_, .. --· _ ...... 
Particulars 

-·· .,,_,,. 

'Mthln the next 12 months (next annual reporttng 

Between 2 and 5 years 

Between 5 and 10 years 

Beyond 10,..,.. 

Totol expected poyrnents 

As at Aprlll, 2017 SenliC8aoot Net Interest expense 

-990 044 -449 522 -71481 

38468 zn7 
--9 51576 ........ 522 -SI704 

AI at Mardt 31, 2019 Mon:h31,2018 

1,37,100 88,206 
6,98,964 5,99,159 

24,20,202 15,43,904 

33,03,474 29,11,637 

&5,59,740 5 ...... -

............ 
13 62 031 

-13 62031 

D 

Benefits paid 

Retum on plan euets ........... ....._ 
(exdudlng amounts arising from change~ 

Included In net In demographic 
Interest expense) --

80 705 

25118 

__ 25L118 -----~ 

Retum on plan auets Act&8ial changes 
(exdudlng amounts arising from change~ 

Included in net In demographic 
Interest expense) _.mpllono 

..g 12 935 

30 133 0 

lg,133 L___ -912.935 

.......... ....._ 
arising from change~ -..... In financial 

_ .. --
-76891 -391915 

0 

______ ·1~ L____ ---------=lt?'-~915 

Actuarial changet 
oriolngfrom-- -..... In ffnanci .. ltdjuabnents 

-.mpllono 

111619 -66091 

0 

111.619 ~011 

Conbibutior. by 
employer 

0 

15 00 OOJ 

L__ 15.00,000 

Conbibutlor. by 
employer 

0 

10 00 000 

- 1g,DD,DDD 

March 31, 2019 

-33 06962 

13 18 032 

·19,88tflCI. 

March 31, 2018 

-23 78 454 

10 71378 

·13,07Jt'l_l 

AI at Mardi 31 2019 

• 



Note- 42 Em*Jcc Stpds Option Plan 

The company had granted 5,00,000 Employee Stock option(ESOP) under the Employee Stock Option Scheme 2017 (ESOP 2017) to an employee during F.Y 
2016-17 spread over a period of 5 years. During the FY 2018-19 these E50Ps have been cancelled, provision of Rs. 27,77,783/- which has been provided in the 
earlier years has been reversed. 

The capr1 Global capital Ltd (Holding Company) has granted 197,500 E50Ps to the employees of the Company. The ESOPs will be vested as per below 

mentioned schedule. A charge of Rs. 21,31,048 /- is recoginised In the statement of Profit & Loss during the year ended Mard1 31, 2019 (Year ended Mard1 31, 
2018 Rs. 4,92,465/-). 

Financial Year in which oDtions will vest 
2020-21 
2021-22 
2022-23 
2023-24 

Note -43 Se4mcpt Infonnatlon liND-A$ 1081 

Operating Segment 

ESOP• equivalent to number of equity shares of face value of Rs 10/- each 

13 250 
54750 
69 750 
59 750 

The Company operates mainly in the business segment of fund based financing activity. All other activities revolve around the main business. Further, all 
activities are canied out within India. As such, there are no separate reportable segments as per the provisions of IND AS 108 on 'Operating Segments'. 

Note 44- Related party disclosures 

Compensation of key manaaement personnel of the Company 
Key management personnel are those individuals who have the authority and responsibility fO< planning and exercising power to directly "' indirectly control the 
activities of the Company and its employees. The COmpany indudes the members of the Board of Directors which include independent directors (and its sub­
committees) and Executive Committee to be key management personnel for the purposes of lnd AS 24 Related Party Disclosures. 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31 2019 March 31 2018 

benefits 8 90 323 
890323 

Transactions with key management personnel of the Company 

The following table provides the total amount of transactions, whiCh have been entered Into with key management personnel for the relevant financial year: 

Parlticulars 
Fees 

Key management personnel of the Company: 
Mr. Kaushik Chatterjee (up to July 30,2018) 
Mr. Rajesh Sharma (w.e.f July 04, 2018) 
Mrs. Bhagyam Ramanl 
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka 
Mr. T.R. Bajalia 

Key management personnel of the Company: 
Mr. Rajesh Sharma 
Mr. Kaushik Chatterjee 
Mrs. Bhagyam Ramani 
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka 
Mr. T.R. Bajalla 

Key management personnel of the Company: 
Mr. Rajesh Sharma 
Mr. Sunil KapoO< 
Mrs. Bhagyam Ramani 
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka 
Mr. T.R. Bajalia 

Transactions with related party of the Company 

Name of related parities and related party relationship: 
a) Related parties where control exists: 

caprl Global capital Umited (Holding Company) 

Statement Of Profit • Loss Item: 
Service fees 
Sale of scrao 
Total 

Balance Sheet Item IOoslno Balance): 
Amount Pavable 
Amount Receivable 
Total 

b) Fellow subsidiary companies 
capr1 Global Resources Private Umited 
capr1 Global Asset Reconstruction Private Umited 
capri Global capital (Mauritius) Umited. 

For the year ended 
March 31 2019 

12 22 500 
12 22 500 

As at March 31, 2019 

Director 
Managing Director 

Independent Director 
Independent Director 
Independent Director 

As at March 31, 2018 

Director 
Director 

independent Director 
Independent Director 
Independent Director 

As at April1, 2017 

Director 
Director 

Independent Director 
Independent Director 
Independent Director 

For the year ended 
March 31 2019 

182 75 360 

182.75360 

As at March 31 2019 
26 23 513 

26 23 513 

For the year ended 
March 31 2018 

2 70 000 
2 70000 

For the year ended 
March 31 2018 

127 75 480 
250 

127 75 730 

As at March 31 2018 

12 41 021 
12.41021 



Note-45Lellses 

Operating Leases: 

The company has taken office premises under operating lease. The lease arrangement are normally renewable on expiry of the lease period at the option of the lessor/lessee ranging from 
3 to 5 years. Some of the lease agreements are having lock in period of eleven months to forty eight months which are non-cancellable during that period. Alter the expiry of the lock In period, 
the lease agreement becomes cancellable in nature at the option of the lessor or the lessee by giving 1·3 months notice to the either party. There are no restrictions Imposed by the lease 
agreement. There Is no contingent rent in the lease agreement. There Is escalation dause in some lease agreements. The future minimum lease payments in respect of the non cancellable 
lease are as follows : 

(Amount In Rs.) 

Particulars As at Mardi 31, 2019 As at Mardi 31 2018 
a) Payable not later than one year 1,08,58,618 1,31,61,558 
b) Payable later than one year and not later than five years 38,22,162 1,05,19,517 
c) Payable later than five years . 

The lease payments recognized In the Statement of Profit&. Loss in respect of non-cancellable lease for the year are Rs.14,788,266/·/· (31st March 2018: Rs.97,89,067/-). 

The lease payments recognized in the Statement of Profit&. Loss in respect of cancellable lease for the year are Rs.74,27,400/· (31st March 2018: Rs.45,93,792/·). 

Note 46-In accordance with IND A5 - 33 Earnings per Share, the computation of earnings per share Is set out below: 

Particulars For Year Ended Mardi 
31,2019 

Net Profit alter tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (A) Rs. 6,98,23,951 

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS (B) Nos. 3,71,00,455 

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS (C) Nos. 3,71,00,455 

Basic earnings per equity share (in Rupees) (Face value of Rs. 10/· per 
(A)/{B) Rs. 1.88 share) 

Diluted earnings per equity share (in Rupees) (Face value of Rs. 10/- per 
(A)/(C) Rs. l.BB share_l_ 

Particulars For Year Ended Mardi 

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating EPS Nos. 

Add : Equity shares for no consideration arising on grant of stock options under ESOP Nos. 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculation of diluted EPS Nos. 

Note 47- The Company believes that no impairment of assets arises during the year as required under IND AS 36 "Impairment of Assets" 

Note 48- CONTINGENT UABIUTIE5 
Income tax matter under disputeRs. 212,329 (March 31, 2018 Rs. NIL) 

Note 49- Capital and other commitment 

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. Nil/· (31st March, 2018 Rs. Nil) 

b) Other Commitments 

Pendino disbursements of sanctioned loans Rs. 163,25,64,730 ( March 31, 2018 Rs. B8,71,76,823) 

31,2019 

3,71,00,455 

. 

3,71,00,455 

I Amoont In Rs. l 

For Year Ended Mardi 31, 
2018 

(6,97,10,276) 

3,19,47,161 

3,22,70,513 

(2.18) 

(2.18) 

For Year Ended Mardi 31, 
2018 

3,19,47,161 

3,23,352 

3,22,70,513 

Note so- Based on the intimation received by the Company, none of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered under 'The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development CMSMED') Act, 
2006". Accordingly, no disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with Interest paid /payable are required to be furnished. 

Note 51· In the opinion of the Management, the Current Assets, Loans&. Advances are realizable In the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the 
Balance Sheet. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not In excess of the amount reasonably necessary. 



CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019 

52 Disclosures have been given in terms of notification no. NHB.HFC.CG­
DIR.1/MD&CE0/2016 dated February 9, 2017 issued by the National Housing Bank. The 
below mentioned notes have been prepared taking into consideration the notification No. 
NHB (ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No.89/2017-18 dated 14th June 2018. 

52.1 Capital To Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR): 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

---· -~ 

( i) CRAR (%) 50.83 69.52 
--

(ii) CRAR ~Tier I Capital (%) 50.35 69.09 
(iii) CRAR- Tier II Capital (%) 0.48 0.43 
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- II Capital - -

i 

I (v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -
-.---- I J 

52.2 Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987 

---
[Amount in Rs. 

Particulars i Current Year Previous Year I 
i 

f-----------

Balance at the beginning of the year 

a) Statutory Reserve uls 29C of the National Housing Bank 28,100,000 7,000,000 
Act, 1987 I 

b) Amount of special reserve uls 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax - -
' Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory 

Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 

c) Total 28,100,000 7,000,000 

(Addition I Appropriation I Withdrawal during the year -

Add: 64,92,900 21,100,000 
~) Amount transferred uls 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 

b) Amount of special reserve uls 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax 7,507,100 -
Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory 
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 

Less: - - I 
a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory reserve uls 29C 

of the NHB Act, 1987 

b) Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve uls - -
36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account 
which has been taken into account for the purpose of 
provision uls 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 

Balance at the end of the year 
--1 

a) Statutory Reserve uls 29C of the National Housing Bank 3,45,92,900 28,100,000 
I Act, 1987 

---

b) Amount of special reserve uls 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax 7,507,100 -
Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory 
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 

c) Total 421,00,000 28,100,000 



CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019 

52.3 Investments 

[Amount in Rs.] 

Current Year Previous Year 
Particulars 

(1) Value of Investments 

(i) Gross Value of Investments 

(a) In India 10,973,681 10,973,681 

(b) Outside India Nil Nil 

(ii) Provisions for Depreciation 

(a) In India Nil Nil 

(b) Outside India Nil Nil 

(iii) Net Value of Investments 

(a) In India 10,973,681 10,973,681 

(b) Outside India Nil Nil 

(2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on 
investments. 

(i) Opening balance Nil Nil 

(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year Nil Nil 

(iii) Less: Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions Nil Nil 
during the year 

(iv) Closing balance Nil Nil 

52.4 Derivatives 

The company has not entered into any derivatives transactions. 

52.5 Disclosures relating to Securitisation 

There are no securitization/ Assignment transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2019. 
Hence, the related disclosures are not applicable. 



CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019 

52.6 Assets Liability Management (Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities) 

---" 

Current Year [Amount in Rs.] 
---

Particulars j Upto Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 6 Over 1 year & Over 3 Over 5 Over 7 I Over Total 

I 30/31 month & months months month & upto 3 years years years years & up 10 

I Days (1 upto 2 & upto & upto upto 1 1 &up to 5 & up to 7 
tolO _t~ month) 

months 3 months 6 months year I years years years 

Liabilities 
---

- - - - - - - - - - -
Deposits 

Borrowings I -

I 
from Bank 57 900 000 94 300 000 49 150 000 192 350 000 530 200 000 2 252 700 000 2 155 000 000 1 405 350 000 6 28 21 752 6 799 771 75 

- - - - - - - - - - -
Market ' 

Borrowing I 
"----"" 

Foreign - - - I - - - - - - -

Currency 

I J 
I 

Liabilities I I 

f--

Advances 67,529,365 15,021,255 9,842,488 28,452,200 79,905,675 277,847,413 354,516,993 1 384,780,667 1,018,203,649 s,690,383,138T 7,926.482,84 

--,---" "-

Investments 
- - - - I - 10,973,681 - - - - 10,973,681 

- - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign 

Currency 

Assets 
____l____ 

Previous Year [Amount in Rs 

Particulars Upto Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 6 I Over 1 year Over 3 Over 5 years Over 7 Over F--
30/31 month & months months month & 

1 
& upto 3 years & up to 7 years & up 10 

I 
Days (1 upto 2 & upto & upto upto 1 I years &up to 5 years to 10 Years 
month) 

months 3 months 6 months year years years 

Liabilities 

- - - - - - - - - - I -
Deposits 

- - 2,500,000 2,500,000 40,714,286 642,397,748 213,926,856 142,857,144 53,571,425 - 1,098,467,45 
Borrowings 

from Bank 
- - - - - - - - - - -

Market 

Borrowing 
"--

- - - - - - - - - -
Foreign 

Currency 

Liabilities I 
Assets 

Advances 
13,479,921 6,886,334 3,621,313 11,961,608 27,587,433 122,600,332 152,785,891 889,583,042 245,948,834 I 985,628,414 2,460,083,12 

- - - - 10,973,681 - - - - - 10,973,6E 
Investments 

- - - - - - - - - -
Foreign 

Currency 

Assets 



CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019 

52.7 Exposure 

Exposure to Real Estate Sector 

--=---=-
[Amount in Rs.] 

Category I Current Year Previous Year 
I 

a) Direct Exposure 
----

(i) Residential Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential I 

property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or ! 
that is rented; (Individual housing loans up to 15 lakhs 
may be shown separately) 

Loans<= 15 Lakhs 5,191,512,809 1,394,900,955 
I 

Loans > 15 Lakhs 2,674,691,100 1,055,213,606 

(ii) Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real 
estates (office buildings, retail space, multi- purpose 
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, 
multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or 
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development Nil Nil 
and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include 

I 
non-fund based (NFB) limits. 

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and 
I other securitised exposures -

a) Residential Nil Nil 

b) Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil 
I 

Indirect Exposure 

Nil Nil I Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National 
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) J 

Exposure to Capital Market 

The Company do not have any exposure to Capital Market. Hence the related disclosures are not 
applicable. 

52.8 Details of financing of parent company products 
These details are not applicable to company as the company is not financing any parent company 
products. 

52.9 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) I Group Borrower Limit (GBL)exceeded by the 
HFC 

These details are not applicable to company as the company has not exceeded the SGL I GBL limit. 

52.10 Unsecured Advances 
The exposure to unsecured advances is Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil) 

52.11 Miscellaneous 

_ ,-,.· .:...::::.~·' · o registration obtained from other financial sector regulators 

i 0UM ,..,.. IS> 't: CHARTERED ~ l ~. ,ACCOUNTANTS)[;; 

\>~ A-... <£> ,.-",. 
'··-0 ,---- .\,./ 

"<-,""~--..,_~"(" ,r, 



CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019 

b) No penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators during the year 

c) Related party Transactions 
Details of all material transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note no. 44. 

d) Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year 

Sr. No. Instrument Rating Agency Date of Amount in Rs 
assigned Rating 

1 Long Term CARE A- Stable CARE 07-Sep-18 11,000,000,000 
Bank Ratings 
Facilities 

2 Long Term A+ 06-Dec-18 6,000,000,000 
Bank Acuite 
Facilities Ratings & 

Research 

3 CP A1+ Acuite 6-Dec-18 1,000,000,000 
Ratings & 
Research 

e) Revenue Recognition 
There have been no instances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending 
resolution of significant Uncertainties. 

52.12 Additional Disclosures 

52.12.1 Provisions and Contingencies 

[Amount in Rs.] 

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the Current Year Previous Year 
head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Provisions for depreciation on Investment Nil Nil 

Provision made towards Income tax 45,749,812 9,197,298 

Provision towards NPA 5,787,917 489,167 

Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teaser loan, CRE, 13,850,174 6,030,142 
CRE-EH etc.) 

Other Provision and Contingencies includes: 

Provision for depreciation on fixed assets 17,637,511 5,224,828 

Provision for gratuity 21,81,854 442,568 

Provision for leave encashment 30,80,741 1,461,606 

Housing Non-Housing 
Break up of Loan & Advances and Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous 
Provisions thereon Year 

Standard Assets 
-~ 

a) Total Outstanding Amount 737,49,94,045 2,365,374,603 449,413,080 94,708,519 

b) Provisions made 1,89,91,668 5,912,531 11,49,871 378,834 

~ub-Standard Assets 
-!~-~Total Outstanding Amount 3,97,74,232 3,261,111 20,72,992 Nil 

_)( g,\provisions made ----~~, 66, 13 5 489,167 3,10,949 Nil 
- - -----

"'-u r·J 
NTANTS [; 

1'-.. .-., 



CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019 

--~ 

L ~:: l 
Doubtful Assets:- Category-I 

a) Total Outstanding Amount Nil ! Nil 

I 

Nil 

b) Provisions made Nil Nil Nil 
~ 

Doubtful Assets- Category-II I 

a) Total Outstanding Amount Nil Nil Nil I Nil . 

P= b) Provisions made Nil Nil Nil 

Doubtful Assets - Category-III 
--------,--~ 

a) Total Outstanding Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil l 
b) Provisions made Nil Nil Nil Nil 

--~ 

Loss Assets -~ Nil 
--

a) Total Outstanding Amount Nil Nil Nil 
~ 

b) Provisions made Nil Nil Nil Nil 

TOTAL 
a) Total Outstanding Amount 741,47,68,277 236,86,35,714 45,14,86,072 9,47,08,519 

I b) Provisions made 2,49,57,803 6,401,698 14,60,819 378,834 

52.12.2 Draw Down from Reserves 

The Company has not made any draw down from reserves during the previous year. 

52.12.3 Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs 

Concentration of Public Deposits 

The disclosure of the concentration of deposits taken is not applicable as the company carries 

on the business of a housing finance institution without accepting public deposits. 

Concentration of Loan and Advances 

[Amount in Rs.] 
Current Year Previous Year 

Total Loans and Advances to twenty largest borrowers 95,155,270 94,275,771 

Percentage of Loans and Advances to twenty largest 1.21% 3.83% 
borrowers to Total Advances of the Company 

Concentration of Exposures (Including Off-Balance Sheet Exposure) 

[Amount in Rs.] 
Current Year Previous Year 

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 97,502,061 94,462,370 

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers I 1.02% 2.94% Ff&-;; customecs to Total Exposure of the HFC on bonowecs J 
f\"1,.,.. ~~~stomers 
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019 

Concentration of NPAs 

Amount in Rs.l 
Current Year Previous 

Year 
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts (Gross) 2,27,77,135 3,261,111 

Sector-wise NPAs 

lSI. No. Sector 

I 

Percentage of NPAs to Total I 
Advances in that sect~ 

A. Housing Loans: 

1. Individuals I 0.54% 

2. Builders/Project Loans Nil 

3. Corporates i Nil =l 4. Others Nil 

B. Non-Housing Loans: 

1. Individuals 0.46% -~! 
2. Builders/Project Loans 

' 
Nil 

·--- --· 

3. Corporates Nil 

4. Others Nil 

Movement of N PAs 

[Amount in Rs.] 

Current Previous 
Particulars Year Year 

(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances {%) 0.45% 0.11% 

(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross) 

(a) Opening balance 3,261,111 Nil 

(b) Additions during the year 3,85,86,113 3,261,111 

(c) Reductions during the year Nil Nil 

{d) Closing balance 4,18,47,224 3,261,111 

(iii) Movement of Net NPAs 

(a) Opening balance 2,771,944 Nil 

(b) Additions during the year 3,27,98,196 2,771,944 

(c) Reductions during the year Nil Nil 

': -~~~' ' . ..2 ¢'\ {d) Closing balance 3,55,70,140 2,771,944 
! 1"1 tP-\ 
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2019 

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets) 

(a) Opening balance 489,167 Nil 

(b) Provisions made during the year 57,87,917 489,167 

(c) Write-off I write-back of excess provisions Nil Nil 

(d) Closing balance 62,77,084 489,167 

52.12.4 Overseas Assets 

The company does not have any overseas assets. 

52.12.5 Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored 

The company has not sponsored any SPVs. Accordingly, the disclosure is not applicable. 

52.12.6 Disclosure of Complaints 

Customer Complaints 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil Nil 

(b) No. of complaints received during the year 27 1 

(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 27 1 

(d) No. of complaint spending at the end of the year Nil Nil 



Note 53: 
a) Figures are rounded off to nearest rupee. 
b) Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to confinn to current year's presentation. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~~~ 
(Rajesh Sharma) (Bhagyam Ramani) 
Managing Director Independent Director 

DIN 00020037 DIN 00107097 

Place: 

Date: 

~? 
(Kal'2(, 

Company Secretary 






































































